
PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 1 of 26 

 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
October 26, 2009 
Meeting Minutes   
______________________________________________________________________ 
October 26, 2009 – 6:30 p.m. 
Commissioners present: Blaser, Carter, Chaney, Dominguez, Finkeldei, Harris, Moore, Rasmussen, 
and Singleton 
Staff present: McCullough, Stogsdill, Day, Finger, J. Miller, M. Miller, Leininger, and Ewert 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
MINUTES 
Receive and amend or approve the minutes from the Planning Commission meetings of September 
21, 2009. 
 
Motioned by Commissioner Harris, seconded by Commissioner Singleton, to approve the September 
21, 2009 Planning Commission minutes with the changes that Commissioner Harris emailed to Ms. 
Denny Ewert. 
 

Motion carried 7-0-1, with Commissioner Rasmussen abstaining. Commissioner Dominguez 
was not present for the vote. 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Receive reports from any committees that met over the past month. 
 
Commissioner Harris said the Comprehensive Plan Committee met and reviewed a rough draft of the 
Environmental Chapter and it is back with staff to reduce the overall length of the chapter and to 
add more info to the policy statements. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
Mr. Scott McCullough reviewed new attachments/communications that were posted to the online 
Planning Commission agenda after the initial posting date. 
 
Receive written communications from staff, Planning Commissioners, or other commissioners. 

• Oread Plan update memo (MJL) 
 
No written action of any waiver requests/determinations made to the City Engineer. 
 
EX PARTE / ABSTENTIONS / DEFERRAL REQUEST 

• Ex parte: 
Commissioner Harris stated she had an ex parte conversation regarding item 4 and that she 
would disclose that prior to discussing the item.  

• No abstentions. 
 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 2 of 26 
PC Minutes 10/26/09  
ITEM NO. 1 PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR PARK PLACE ADDITION; 7.71 ACRES; 510-544 

FIRESIDE DR (SLD) 
 
PP-6-3-09: Consider a two lot multi-family Preliminary Plat on approximately 7.71 acres for Park 
Place Addition located at 510-544 Fireside Drive. Submitted by Paul Werner Architects, for Ernest 
Fleischer, property owner of record.  
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner Finkeldei, seconded by Commissioner Harris, to approve the Preliminary 
Plat of Park Place Addition and forwarding it to the City Commission for consideration of the 
requested vacation of right-of-way and easements and dedication of easements, subject to the 
following condition: 

 
1. Provision of a revised preliminary plat to include a note that states “public access shall not be 

gated in any way to prevent vehicle or pedestrian access to the property or development.” 
 

Unanimously approved 8-0, as part of the Consent Agenda. (Commissioner Dominguez was 
not present for the vote.) 

 
 

 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 3 of 26 
PC Minutes 10/26/09   
ITEM NO. 2 PRELIMINARY PLAT INCLUDING VARIANCE; ROCKWALL FARMS 

ADDITION; 58.99 ACRES; N 1800 RD & E 700 RD (MKM) 
 
PP-8-4-09: Consider a 58.99 acre, 1 lot Preliminary Plat of Rockwall Farms Addition, located near 
the intersection of N 1800 Rd & E 700 Rd and a variance from Section 20-810(j)(1) of the 
Subdivision Regulations regarding the protection measures for environmental sensitive areas and 
natural areas. Submitted by Paul Werner Architects, for Rockwall Farms L. C., property owner of 
record.  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Mary Miller presented the item. 
 
Commissioner Harris asked Ms. Miller to address the League of Women Voters letter concerns. 
 
Ms. Miller said the access would be determined by the Director of the Douglas County Public Works 
so that would not something that Planning or the County Commission would determine. The County 
Zoning Regulations say that the applicant shall describe the proposed use of the site and calculate 
the parking and the uses known at that time they would assume the most intensive use. A condition 
of approval for the County of Commissioners includes a list of things that staff has to look at and one 
of those is that the proposed use is a permitted use in the district and so the applicant is required to 
let staff know the use on the site plan. 
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
Mr. Matthew Gough, Barber Emerson Law Firm, said Ms. Miller did a great job at presenting the 
item. He went over some of the concerns raised by the League of Women Voters letter. He said 
references to conditional zoning have already been addressed by Planning Commission when they 
approved the county code text amendments. He stated concerns about where the access agreement 
will be are mitigated greatly by the fact that the subject property is owned by the same owner as 
adjacent parcels. He said the applicant is just carving out a 59 acre flag lot surrounded by many 
more acres that the applicant owns so there are no concerns about neighbors having notice. He 
stated also the reason why an easement is recorded is to provide record notice to anyone who would 
buy the adjacent lot. He said the site plan is coming and is something that will describe the uses and 
layout where the buildings will be and will provide a great opportunity to look at the specific use. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
No public comment. 
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner Carter, seconded by Commissioner Finkeldei, to approve the Preliminary 
Plat of the Rockwall Farms Addition and referring it to the Board of County Commissioners for 
consideration of dedication of easements and rights-of-way subject to the following conditions of 
approval: 
 

1. The applicant shall execute a temporary set-aside agreement for the environmentally 
sensitive areas designated for protection. The Book and Page Number of the recorded 
agreement shall be noted on the face of the final plat. 

 
2. Evidence shall be submitted to the planning office showing that the applicable Fire 

Department has approved the dry hydrant and its location as being adequate to support 
firefighting needs prior to the recording of the final plat, 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 4 of 26 
 

3. The plat shall be revised with the following changes: 
a. Note 10 revised to read: “An access easement providing public access to N 1800 

Road in a location approved by the County Engineer shall be dedicated by 
separate instrument and the Book and Page Number noted on the final plat.” 

b. Note 11 revised to read: “An easement containing the off-site sewage 
management system and its connection to the platted lot shall be dedicated by 
separate instrument. The Book and Page Number of the recorded easement shall 
be noted on the face of the final plat.” 

c. The following note shall be added regarding the use of a lagoon as a sewage 
management system: “In the event that a lagoon is used for sanitary waste 
management, the system shall be designed to allow for future connection to a 
public sewer system and a copy of the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment approval documentation shall be provided the Planning Office. In 
addition, the easement shall note the appropriate entity for maintenance of a 
future lagoon”. 

d. A note shall be added which states that direct public access from Lot 1 to N 1800 
Road is not permitted. “Public access to Lot 1 shall be from the access easement 
described in Note 10.” 

 
Unanimously approved 8-0. (Commissioner Dominguez not present for the vote.) 

 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 5 of 26 
PC Minutes 10/26/09  
ITEM NO. 3 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; RURAL WATER DISTRICT #5; 1292 N 1100 

RD (LF) 
 
CUP-8-9-09: Consider a Conditional Use Permit for a new booster station for Rural Water District 
#5, located at 1292 N 1100 Road. Submitted by Bartlett & West, for Rural Water District No. 5, 
property owner of record.  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Linda Finger presented the item. She stated that staff met with the applicants and agreed on 10’ 
R-O-W rather than the full 20’ of R-O-W so condition number 2 has been updated to reflect that 
change. She said the 10’ R-O-W would be consistent with the Oakwood Estates dedication. She 
showed two example pictures on the overhead of what the building could look like.  
 
No disclosure of ex parte by the Commissioners. 
 
Commissioner Harris asked if Planning Commission could regulate the appearance of the building. 
 
Ms. Finger said there is no regulatory authority for the Planning Commission to address that, it is 
really more of a good faith effort of the applicants wanting to work with the neighbors to come up 
with something that is more compatible. 
 
Commissioner Carter asked if perhaps brick could be used. 
 
Ms. Finger said brick might be a possible option. 
 
Mr. McCullough said that as part of the Conditional Use Permit, Planning Commission can 
recommend aesthetic design solutions as a way to mitigate issues with adjacent property owners.   
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
Mr. Alan Soelter, Bartlett & West, said that the pump station is a joint effort with Rural Water District 
2 and 5. He said there are a number of options on the aesthetics and they hope to come up with a 
pleasing option for the neighbors. 
 
Commissioner Moore asked Mr. Soelter to discuss a possible underground facility. 
 
Mr. Soelter said underground facilities are discouraged because of the environmental requirements 
and having electrical equipment underground, which can be difficult to maintain. He said there will 
be a lot going on in this pump station and they want to keep flexibility in the station so that it can be 
relocated in the future if needed. He stated the underground option for this type of facility is not 
really practical. He said they are willing to work on the aesthetics of the building but are limited by 
space. Landscaping will also be planted to buffer the building from the neighborhood. 
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about the driveway surface. 
 
Mr. Soelter said whatever the requirement is. He said they are willing to have a small drive just to 
the east big enough to pull a truck off the road. 
 
Commissioner Rasmussen inquired about the Kansas Department Health and Environment (KDHE) 
not allowing the facility to be placed underground. He asked what was not allowed. 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 6 of 26 
Mr. Soelter said there will be pumps, lighting, switch gear, and electrical equipment that will be in 
this facility that over the years KDHE has discourage putting underground. He stated as a rule they 
do not like pump stations of this nature placed underground. He said the facility is larger and more 
complex and if it floods it could become a problem. He said it is a safety concern. He said the 
environmental concern is regarding water getting into the station. 
 
Commissioner Rasmussen said he was trying to figure out what the environmental concern is.  
 
Mr. Soelter said that KDHE approves all installations like this from a design standpoint. He said it was 
not a contamination issue, but rather a safety concern because of all the electrical equipment 
underground in a steel vault and KDHE regulates the design aspects of that and issue a public water 
supply permit. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Mr. Brian Rock,

 

 resident of Oakwood Estates, expressed concern about the appearance of the pump 
station. He felt as proposed it is terrible. He would like the building to meet the Oakwood Estate 
appearance requirements, such as a pitched roof and a percentage of stone used. He said he would 
prefer that it was stick built using local labor instead of a prefabricated building. 

Commissioner Finkeldei asked if the Oakwood Estates has an architectural review committee. 
 
Mr. Rock said yes, but because the development is already fully developed, except for one lot, the 
committee has been merged into the board, but he said he was willing to volunteer to be the liaison 
and was familiar with the process. 
 
Commissioner Blaser asked what percentage of the building has to be stone. 
 
Mr. Rock said 25% has to be stone and can be imitation stone. 
 
Commissioner Singleton asked Mr. Rock if he had seen the two pictures that Ms. Finger showed 
before today. 
 
Mr. Rock said no. He suggested the building look like a two car garage with no air conditioner unit in 
the window. 
 
Mr. Rick Edmonds

 

 asked if the pump station would have overhead or buried electrical supply. He 
wondered if there has been any attempt to buy more land from the Grovers, adjacent property 
owners. He asked if it is a dollar amount that prevents fire hydrants in the area. He said fire 
protection is a big concern. 

Commissioner Moore asked if Mr. Edmonds meant by additional land purchase to expand the site. 
 
Mr. Edmonds said yes. 
 
APPLICANT CLOSING COMMENTS 
Mr. Soelter said regarding the stick build versus prefabricated, the ultimate goal is to be able to 
relocate the building in the future so if it were stick build it could not be moved. He said at this time 
there has been no attempt to purchase more land for the site. 
 
Commissioner Singleton asked what Mr. Soelter is suggesting the building look like. 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 7 of 26 
Mr. Soelter said they are committed to going with a much more attractive roof scheme. He said as 
far as façade there is additional cost and he was not sure it would improve the overall look of the 
facility.  
 
Commissioner Singleton asked if the only difference between the two pictures that Ms. Finger 
showed is the roof. 
 
Mr. Soelter said yes, he believed so. 
 
Commissioner Singleton asked if the electrical supply would be underground or overhead. 
 
Mr. Soelter said he did not think it would be a big issue to bring the power supply from the pole to 
the station underground. 
 
Commissioner Carter asked if stone could be used with a prefabricated building. 
 
Mr. Soelter said that it will be a small building so they cannot do very many different materials so it 
would probably have to be one solid exterior. 
 
Commissioner Blaser asked what the outside of the building would be made of. 
 
Mr. Soelter said it is basically a fiberglass aggregate gel coat exterior. 
 
Commissioner Carter inquired what the additional cost would be to make it stone or brick. 
 
Mr. Soelter said he would have to check on the cost of stone but brick would be about $10,000. 
 
Commissioner Moore inquired about the HVAC system. 
 
Mr. Soelter said it will be standard installation but the air conditioning unit will be screened. He said 
it would not be as intrusive as the picture seems. 
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked who approves county site plans. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the site plan is a vehicle for adopting the Conditional Use Permit but that the 
County Commission approves county site plans. 
 
Commissioner Harris recommending adding language to condition 1 so that it would say ‘Revising the 
site plan to provide: aesthetic building and driveway design compatible with the adjacent residential 
area..’  She said she did not go as far to say it had to meet the standards of the subdivision but she did 
think it would be in the best interest of the neighbors and the project to have the building and driveway 
be compatible with the residential area adjacent to it. 
 
Commissioner Moore said he agreed with Commissioner Harris. 
 
Commissioner Carter asked how close the pump station would be to the Grover property. 
 
Mr. Soelter said about 200’-250’. 
 
Ms. Finger said the aerial map in the staff report shows the Grover house in relation to the pump 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 8 of 26 
station.  
 
Commissioner Rasmussen said he would not be in favor of adding more impervious surface to the 
area. He said he would be more in favor of an aggregate surface driveway because it fits with the 
rural character of the area and it is not impervious.  
 
Commissioner Carter said he was okay with the driveway not being paved. He said as close as the 
other residences are he would at least like to make the effort to come closer to the neighborhood 
design requirements. 
 
Commissioner Singleton said there are other utility structures at the intersection, such as poles and 
transformers. She said she was comfortable with the facility being built as is and felt that if the 
homeowners wanted to contribute the money for the appearance of the building they could do that. 
 
Commissioner Blaser did not feel the driveway needed to be concrete. He said for probably not much 
more money the building could add 25% brick or stone.  
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked for Commissioner Harris to repeat the language she suggested for 
condition 1. 
 
Commissioner Harris repeated what she suggested earlier ‘Revising the site plan to provide: aesthetic 
building and driveway design compatible with the adjacent residential area...’   
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked who would enforce that language. 
 
Mr. McCullough said staff would want to see the new design first before releasing to the county for 
building permits. He said he would prefer to have a little more consensus on the some of the design 
elements such as a certain type of residential roof line, a certain ratio of material on the façade, and 
the driveway material. He said the proposed landscaping will help buffer the building. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked what most of the driveways are made of in Oakwood Estates. 
 
Mr. Rock said there are a mixture of driveways but most are asphalt. He was not opposed to the 
packed pea gravel type driveway. He said there is a roofline minimum slope, wood shake singles or 
better requirement, and 25% stone façade requirement. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei said he could see how the roofline is important, 25% rock or equivalent 
material made sense, and pea gravel was fine for the driveway. He said he liked the language of 
being consistent with the neighborhood. 
 
Commissioner Moore agreed that a pea gravel drive was fine. He suggested that no lighting be 
shining toward the neighbors. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei said he would prefer to keep the language as Commissioner Harris proposed 
to provide flexibility in working out the details. 
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner Harris, seconded by Commissioner Carter, to approve the Conditional Use 
Permit for a new booster station for Rural Water District #5, located at 1292 N 1100 Road, and 
forwarded it to the County Commission with a recommendation for approval based upon the findings of 
fact in the staff report and the following conditions: 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 9 of 26 
1. Revising the site plan to provide: aesthetic building and driveway design compatible with the 

adjacent residential area; dimensions and type of materials for parking area, drive, entrance cut 
(width), sidewalk, and landscape screening; note regarding removal of existing road cut; and, 
pre-fabricated building entry points and dimensions. Show evergreen trees, tall deciduous shrubs 
and/or a mix to create a visual screen on the north, east and west sides of the site to minimize 
the visual impact of the structure on the adjoining residential subdivision; 

2. Dedication, by separate instrument, of an additional 10’ of road right-of-way for N 1100 Road; 
3. The existing access point onto N 1100 Road be closed; and, 
4. Approval of the necessary front and rear setback variances by the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

 
Unanimously approved 8-0. (Commissioner Dominguez was not present for the vote.) 

 
Commissioner Dominguez arrived at the meeting at 7:30pm. 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 10 of 26 
PC Minutes 10/26/09   
ITEM NO. 4A ANNEXATION; 34.38 ACRES; 31ST

 
 & KASOLD DR (MKM) 

A-8-3-09: Annexation of approximately 34.38 acres and adjacent right-of-way for Wesleyan Church 
Development, located southeast of 31st

 

 and Kasold Drive. Submitted by Dean Grob, for Chester B. 
Spray Trust, property owner of record and Wesleyan Church, Contract Purchaser.  

ITEM NO. 4B A TO RM12; 32.78 ACRES; 31ST

 
 & KASOLD DR (MKM) 

Z-8-14-09: Consider a request to rezone approximately 32.78 acres from A (Agricultural) to RM12 
(Multi-Dwelling Residential) for Wesleyan Church Development, located southeast of 31st

 

 and Kasold 
Drive. Submitted by Dean Grob, for Chester B. Spray Trust, property owner of record and Wesleyan 
Church, Contract Purchaser.  

ITEM NO. 4C A & V-C TO OS; 4.36 ACRES; 31ST

 
 & KASOLD DR (MKM) 

Z-8-15-09: Consider a request to rezone approximately 4.36 acres from A (Agricultural) and V-C 
(Valley Channel) to OS (Open Space) for Wesleyan Church Development, located southeast of 31st

 

 
and Kasold Drive. Submitted by Dean Grob, for Chester B. Spray Trust, property owner of record and 
Wesleyan Church, Contract Purchaser. 

ITEM NO. 4D RM12 & OS TO FLOODPLAIN OVERLAY; 11.35 ACRES; 31ST

 

 & KASOLD DR 
(MKM) 

Z-8-16-09: Consider a request to rezone approximately 11.35 acres from RM12 (Multi-Dwelling 
Residential) and OS (Open Space) to the Floodplain Overlay District for Wesleyan Church 
Development, located southeast of 31st

 

 and Kasold Drive. Submitted by Dean Grob, for Chester B. 
Spray Trust, property owner of record and Wesleyan Church, Contract Purchaser. 

STAFF PRESENTATION 
Disclosure of ex parte: Commissioner Harris said she talked with a coworker of hers at Kansas 
University that is a traffic engineer and they discussed how access points are determined on a curve 
so that she could formulate questions for staff this evening. 
 
Ms. Mary Miller presented items 4A-4D together. 
 
Commissioner Harris asked if there were any City Codes or requirements to maintain private roads. 
 
Ms. Miller said the City Development Code only permits private roads in a planned development and 
the maintenance responsibility would be noted on the planned development to be taken care of by 
the home owners association. The roads need to be built to city standard in case they are taken over 
by the city at some point. 
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about the League of Women Voters letter (point 1) where they state 
‘We have several examples of serious problems that have developed for residents in years past who 
unwittingly purchased homes in large lot developments with no access except to private driveways 
built to driveway standards in place of public streets, and with no public maintenance.’ 
 
Ms. Miller said she did not know if they were referring to something that was divided under the 
Townhouse Act which allows subdivision without coming to the Planning office. She said there is a 
provision under the Subdivision Regulations regarding a development that could be subdivided then 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 11 of 26 
the owner responsible for maintenance of the common areas needs to be noted on the plat. 
 
Commissioner Rasmussen asked if there was a general idea where there might be sidewalks. He 
expressed concern about sidewalks along 31st

 
 Street. 

Ms. Miller said there will be sidewalks on 31st

 

 Street and on the minor arterial. She said sidewalks 
may not be added to E 1200 Road until it is actually improved. She said the road to the south would 
have to have sidewalks on both sides. 

Commissioner Rasmussen asked if the sidewalk along 31st

 
 Street would be completed. 

Mr. McCullough said the city project might do that. 
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about traffic at the curve. She asked if a traffic study would not be 
triggered unless there were a certain number of trips from the development. She felt that there 
should still be some type of traffic analysis to make sure there is adequate site distance and proper 
access. 
 
Mr. McCullough said it would happen at platting stage. 
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
Mr. Dean Grob, Grob Engineering, said the Comprehensive Plan and Southern Plan requires 
annexation before development so that was dictated by the City not the applicant. He said the 
church is agreeable to restricted density. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
No public comment. 
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Commissioner Finkeldei said this is exactly the type of development anticipated for this area and the 
rezoning is consistent with the plan. He said he saw no reason to oppose it. 
 
ACTION TAKEN ON ITEM 4A 
Motioned by Commissioner Finkeldei, seconded by Commissioner Harris, to approve the requested 
annexation of approximately 34.38 acres and adjacent right-of-way on the southeast corner of W 31st

 

 
Street and Kasold Drive. 

 Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
ACTION TAKEN ON ITEM 4B 
Motioned by Commissioner Finkeldei, seconded by Commissioner Singleton, to approve the rezoning 
request for 32.78 acres from County A (Agricultural) District to RM12 (Multi-Dwelling Residential) 
District and forwarding it to the City Commission with a recommendation for approval based on the 
findings of fact found in the body of the staff report subject to the following condition: 
 1.  The maximum allowed residential density shall not exceed 6 Dwelling Units per acre. 
  
 Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
ACTION TAKEN ON ITEM 4C 
Motioned by Commissioner Finkeldei, seconded by Commissioner Singleton, to approve the rezoning 
request for 4.24 4.36 acres from County A (Agricultural) and County V-C (Valley Channel) Districts to 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 12 of 26 
OS (Open Space) District and forwarding it to the City Commission with a recommendation for 
approval based on the findings of fact found in the body of the staff report. 
 
 Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
ACTION TAKEN ON ITEM 4D 
Motioned by Commissioner Finkeldei, seconded by Commissioner Singleton, to approve the rezoning 
request for 10.24

 

 11.35 acres from RM12 (Multi-Dwelling Residential) and OS (Open Space) Districts 
to the RM12-FP and OS-FP (Floodplain Overlay District for a portion of the Multi-Dwelling and Open 
Space Districts) and forwarding it to the City Commission with a recommendation for approval based 
on the findings of fact found in the body of the staff report. 

 Unanimously approved 9-0. 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 13 of 26 
PC Minutes 10/26/09   
ITEM NO. 5 IG TO CS; .189 ACRES; 504 LOCUST ST (MJL) 
 
Z-8-12-09: Consider a request to rezone approximately .189 acres located at 504 Locust Street 
from IG (General Industrial) to CS (Strip Commercial). Submitted by Paul Werner Architects, for 
Michael J. Nunez, property owner of record.  
 
ITEM NO. 6 IG TO CS; .063 ACRES; 500-500 ½ LOCUST ST (MJL) 
 
Z-8-13-09: Consider a request to rezone approximately .063 acres located at 500-500 ½ Locust 
Street from IG (General Industrial) to CS (Strip Commercial). Submitted by Paul Werner Architects 
for Sunrea Properties LLC, property owner of record.  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Michelle Leininger presented items 5 and 6 together. 
 
Commissioner Harris asked if either property was designated as historic. 
 
Ms. Leininger said no. 
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
No applicant presentation. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
No public comment. 
 
ACTION TAKEN ON ITEM 5 
Motioned by Commissioner Carter, seconded by Commissioner Blaser, to approve the rezoning of 
approximately 8,250 SF, from IG (General Industrial) District to CS (Commercial Strip) District 
based on the findings presented in the staff report and forwarding it to the City Commission with a 
recommendation for approval. 
 

Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
ACTION TAKEN ON ITEM 6 
Motioned by Commissioner Carter, seconded by Commissioner Blaser, to approve the rezoning of 
approximately 2,749 SF, from IG (General Industrial) District to CS (Commercial Strip) District based 
on the findings presented in the staff report and forwarding it to the City Commission with a 
recommendation for approval. 
 

Unanimously approved 9-0. 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 14 of 26 
PC Minutes 10/26/09 
ITEM NO. 7 AMENDMENTS TO DEVELOPMENT CODE; BOARDING HOUSE (SDM) 
 
TA-6-17-09: Consider Text Amendments to various sections of the City of Lawrence Land 
Development Code to review standards related to “Boarding House.” Deferred from 9/21/09 Planning 
Commission.  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Mr. Scott McCullough presented the item. He stated that this was discussed and initiated during the 
May Planning Commission meeting. Staff conclusions in reviewing boarding houses results in 
condensing the use down to a new section called congregate living in the use standards that would 
require a permitted use in the appropriate zoning districts, up to a certain threshold. The threshold 
being six bedrooms and six occupants, after that a Special Use Permit would be required. Staff also 
proposes that a full time resident manager or owner reside on the site with a Special Use Permit to 
address some of the impacts that congregate living type uses can create for neighborhoods. Staff 
proposes that parking be provided at a rate of one space per occupant, that uncovered decks and 
patios located on the side or rear of the structure be limited to 15 square feet per occupant, and that 
a trash receptacle be designated on the site plan. Staff accepts the League of Women Voters 
recommendation on the definition of congregate living. Kyle Thompson recommended that the 
standard related to the covered decks eliminate the words ‘side or rear.’ He would not like large 
decks constructed on the front of a structure either. Paul Werner’s letter discusses the legal non-
conforming nature of what this might do to existing boarding houses. Mr. McCullough said the 
Development Code does address legal non-conformities. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei inquired about the definition of a full time resident manager. 
 
Mr. McCullough said it is not a defined term, it is an element of Special Use Permits and defined 
through that process. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked if the resident manager could just be one of the 10 college kids living 
there. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the value in having a resident manager is to have one contact point that Code 
Enforcement or the Police can contact. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked about the definition of fraternity or sorority. 
 
Ms. Sheila Stogsdill said the definition is under household living as Greek Housing. 
 
Mr. McCullough said fraternity or sorority is in the use table. 
 
Commissioner Carter inquired about Paul Werner’s email that says more could be done to protect 
existing legal boarding houses. 
 
Mr. McCullough said he thought it was a philosophical question about how the Development Code 
would treat legal non-conforming structures. He said there is an article in the Development Code 
that generally reviews any non-conforming structure. 
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about the wording in the Development Code that says the first purpose 
is to have the use economical to the owner. She thought that was unusual wording for a purpose. 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 15 of 26 
Mr. McCullough said the reason that staff included that is because the standard is speaking to the 
fact that part of the use is permitted by right up to a certain threshold. The Special Use Permit goes 
through Planning Commission and the governing body and is an additional process, so economical 
was included for the owner because the use is worthy of some mitigation or review of possible 
mitigation for a neighborhood, which has an economical element to it. Staff have heard that 
boarding houses should have an economical element to them so staff thought that if a system was 
created where a certain number of bedrooms and occupants by right were part of the site planning, 
then anything over and above that will be reviewed for mitigation. 
 
Commissioner Harris asked if it is tied to efficiency. 
 
Mr. McCullough said yes, and efficient process. 
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about the importance of a manager to maintain the site. She said the 
Development Code does not really talk about what the purpose of the manager is and what the 
owner is responsible for. 
 
Mr. McCullough said there are going to be a range of possible issues that may present itself with an 
application for a Special Use. Staff wanted the Code to remain a bit open ended on what issues the 
resident manager may have to contend with. Any issues presented through the Special Use Permit 
process can become conditions for a resident manager to keep on top of. Staff did not necessarily 
come up with an exhaustive list of what those issues may be. Staff felt it was important to require 
that element in the Special Use Permit process and then define that as the Special Use unfolds. 
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about the language ‘shall have a full time resident manager as 
identified through the Special Use Permit process.’ She asked if that is what was meant by no 
conditions attached with that. 
 
Mr. McCullough said there are no conditions that the Code outlines now and that each Special Use 
Permit may have their own set of issues. He said staff would like a main contact for issues that come 
up during the Special Use process and any issues that may come up afterward.  
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about the communications received that suggests having the front 
patio or deck have a limit on the square feet as well as the side and rear. 
 
Mr. McCullough said that staff discussed that. It is a proposed standard because some of these 
decks are large and can hold a large number of people and support large gatherings. Staff was 
looking for a way to mitigate that issue through design. Staff talked about whether that should 
include front covered/uncovered porches, rear, side, etc and this is where staff landed based on 
discussion, but it is certainly up for further discussion. 
 
Commissioner Harris asked why front porches were not included. 
 
Mr. McCullough said that staff experience has not been that a lot of front decks are uncovered. Staff 
determined excluding covered decks and patios because they are typically wrap around or have front 
porch type design elements and that covering the decks or patios would help contain some amount 
of noise. It is something that staff debated and this is where it ended up. Staff did not think it was 
an issue that had to be addressed today in the Code. 
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about the number of people who can live together and where they fall 
in the Code. She said that if staff liked the language that the League of Women Voters suggested 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 16 of 26 
regarding five or more sleeping units, what happens if there are four, would that fall under 
congregate living. 
 
Mr. McCullough said if there are four people in the RM district then it meets the definition of family 
so it would not be considered congregate living. 
 
Commissioner Rasmussen inquired about the deck size and asked if there was no limit to size if it 
was a covered deck. 
 
Mr. McCullough said that was correct. 
 
Commissioner Rasmussen asked how the city would enforce not sharing trash receptacles. 
 
Mr. McCullough said today some of the site plans that are processed for boarding houses have notes 
related to sharing trash receptacles, which may be a couple of homes down such as a dumpster in 
the alley on another private property. In staff’s discussions with Solid Waste anything that demands 
site planning over the definition of family of four or more really demands their own trash receptacle 
site. Staff is trying to support the Solid Waste department by creating the Code requirement that if 
there is a threshold that requires site planning in a residential district that there will be a designated 
trash receptacle site on the property, similar to what is done with apartment complexes. He said that 
staff agreed with Mr. Kyle Thompson’s suggestion of changing the sentence ‘Sharing trash receptacle 
areas with other properties shall not be permitted’ to ‘The area shall be used for trash collection 
when deemed necessary by the Solid Waste Division.’ 
 
Commissioner Rasmussen inquired about the League of Women Voters definition of congregate 
living and asked if that was going to confuse how the requirement of six bedrooms and six 
occupants is interpreted if it is defined as five or more. 
 
Mr. McCullough said it simply defines what congregate living is and then the Code directs to specific 
use standards for that particular type of use where it then creates the threshold for process. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Mr. Steven Watts

 

, 1649 Edgehill Road, said his road was removed from the Oread Neighborhood 
Plan to eliminate his input on the plan. 

Mr. Eric Oligschlaeger

 

, owns boarding houses, and expressed concern about the depreciation of 
boarding houses. He wondered if there had been an analysis of the cost to renovate depreciated 
houses around campus. He said he could not do it with only six occupants and would need more 
occupants to afford the proper work needed to the depreciated homes. He said the renovation of 
these houses is pretty high and that some single families could not afford to do it. He wondered 
what would happen to the houses around campus if they could only be sold as five or six bedrooms. 

Commissioner Carter asked Mr. Oligschlaeger to clarify what he said about five or six bedrooms. 
 
Mr. Oligschlaeger said if the parking requirement is changed he would not be able to get six parking 
spaces and what would be the incentive to fix up a dilapidated house. He said when he asks for a 
loan from a bank he has to prove a certain amount of people will rent the house to be able to afford 
the mortgage. 
 
Commissioner Harris inquired about his thoughts on parking. 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 17 of 26 
Mr. Oligschlaeger said not all of his occupants have cars, for example he has renters from Chicago 
who do not have vehicles. He said he did understand that parking is limited in the Oread 
neighborhood. He said possible options could be a parking spot in front or each side of the house 
sideways. He suggested changing the setback requirements. 
 
Mr. David Holroyd
 

 asked if the term congregate living was replacing the term boarding house. 

Mr. McCullough said yes, as proposed. 
 
Mr. Holroyd asked what district a boarding house could be in. 
 
Mr. McCullough said all of the RM districts except RM12D and RMG. 
 
Mr. Holroyd asked if RM32 would still have the same use. 
 
Mr. McCullough said none of the districts have been changed pertaining to where congregate 
living/boarding houses would be permitted.  
 
Mr. Holroyd asked about the notification process. 
 
Mr. McCullough said that all statutory requirements for the notification process were followed for text 
amendments. 
 
Ms. Candice Davis

 

, expressed concerns about the Code being distorted in the last several years. She 
was concerned about people changing their single dwelling with four occupants to a boarding house. 
She was also concerned about parking issues and said that most people living in boarding houses 
have cars and their friends have cars. She felt there was a loophole in the Code. She said she too 
has an investment in her own property. 

Commissioner Rasmussen asked if the parking requirement was imposed on boarding houses did Ms. 
Davis think it would solve the parking issues in the neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Davis felt it would solve a lot of problems and would have a critical impact on parking and the 
livability of the neighborhood.  
 
Mr. Rob Farha

 

, asked where five people would fall if four people constitute as a single family and six 
people for congregate living. 

Mr. McCullough said that five or more would be the definition of congregate living. Six is the 
threshold for what would be permitted through a Site Plan approval. Over six would be a Special Use 
Permit. 
 
Mr. Farha inquired about the resident manager and said that his rental occupants change yearly. He 
said that the ownership group of his boarding houses is already proactive so he did not feel another 
administrator was necessary.  
 
Commissioner Carter asked if he had suggestions for where boarding houses should be located. 
 
Mr. Farha said there are appropriate locations for boarding houses. He felt that an appropriate area 
would be on Ohio Street from 13th Street to 14th Street because he did not believe single family 
would ever be back in that area.  



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 18 of 26 
 
Commissioner Harris asked Mr. Farha who the neighborhood should call if they have concerns about 
the house.  
 
Mr. Farha said the police should be called because there is an ordinance in place. 
 
Mr. McCullough reminded the Commission that RM districts are city wide, not just specific to the 
Oread neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Marci Francisco

 

, 1101 Ohio Street, said the proposal makes sense because if parking 
requirements are consistent with other uses in the multi family districts then the choice about what 
is the most appropriate way to develop will be made for other reasons other than how many people 
can live in the property. She said there is a house on the east side of the street on Indiana that has 
open front decks. She appreciated the changes made regarding the trash. She suggested adding 
language to specific standard #4 ‘a trash receptacle on the property’ She also hoped that in the 
future it would be referred to as ‘trash and recycling area.’ She said she lives in the neighborhood 
and has made investments. She felt the price of the property is often set by what is able to be done 
with it. She felt that if people kept up their properties then property values would be maintained and 
become more affordable for home owners and investors. 

Commissioner Dominguez asked how to resolve the idea of a house that needs a substantial amount 
of investment in order to make a profit and sustain a business venture. He asked how that would be 
offset when a house has to be demolished because there is no investor; how is balance found. 
 
Ms. Francisco said that she has made it work on several properties in the past, such as 1042 Ohio. 
She said if there is a limit to the development then the initial cost will be less for others to purchase. 
She felt that the change would also encourage people with property to maintain it instead of thinking 
that they don’t have to invest in it and let it deteriorate and then tear it down and build a boarding 
house. There is an opportunity to invest and maintain property that will pay off. 
 
Mr. Tony Backus

 

, owns 1121 Ohio Street, not sure what he thinks about this change. He felt that 
more density is needed as opposed to apartments out on the fringe of the city. He said that limiting 
a deck to 15 square feet was absurd and goes against the nature of a deck. 

Mr. Bill Gadberry

 

, owns a home in the Oread neighborhood. He said he bought the house as an 
investment and when he purchased it in 1984 it was zoned RD and when it was put back on the 
market again in 2006 it was RM32 which he felt was downzoning. He felt there should be 
compensation of some sort. He felt the parking issues were due to students who live in apartments 
further away and drive to campus. He said his building is the only one with two trash receptacles. He 
was opposed to another change in the zoning and felt that that the downzoning has to stop. He felt 
the neighborhood should be allowed to improve through development. 

Commissioner Singleton asked if he thought this text amendment would improve the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Gadberry said no. He said he did not think parking was an issue because it is not the people who 
live in the area that are parking there. He was opposed to further downzoning in the area. 
 
Mr. Steven Watts, 1649 Edgehill Road, said that Edgehill Road is the only street in the Oread that 
allows parking on both sides of the street on a one way road. He said that parking is an issue. He 
said that because he doesn’t have a neighborhood association he doesn’t have anyone to lobby for 
him. 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 19 of 26 
 
Mr. Tim Coldsnow

 

, owns property in the Oread neighborhood, understood the frustration of the 
Oread neighborhood, because it has a certain character and as long as the campus is there is will 
continue to have that character. He felt that this code would hamper owners and that downzoning is 
only going to hurt. He said there are ordinances that should take care of any problems. He said 
these are investment properties and they should be seen as this. 

Commissioner Harris asked Mr. Coldsnow what he would have to do to his property to comply. 
 
Mr. Coldsnow said that some of them would have to be completely gutted and have new electrical 
and fire sprinklers added. 
 
Mr. McCullough said that boarding houses are site planned today and when uses change there are 
requirements to bring elements up to standard. That exists today through the building and fire codes 
and is not changing. There are elements of the zoning standards are changing that may limit the 
scope of what a boarding house can become. He said outside of that we are not doing anything with 
the standards that exist today except attempting to create a process by which we can determine 
based on review of the golden factors in the zoning process whether a boarding house is compatible 
with a neighborhood. He said the city is not limiting anything in this revision that is not there today 
in terms of boarding houses. He said today the definition of boarding house is limited to 12 sleeping 
rooms and 24 people and that cap is being removed so if someone has a very large structure they 
can bring in a Special Use Permit and have it reviewed. If parking is met and other zoning 
requirements then it may not be limited to 12 sleeping rooms. 
 
Commissioner Dominguez asked what value a large boarding house brings to a neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Coldsnow said it is neighborhood specific but that it adds character to the Oread neighborhood if 
it is done correctly. 
  
Mr. Farha said value to the neighborhood is specific for the right location. Structures that are cleaned 
up add value as opposed to a dilapidated structure. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked if any of the properties Mr. Farha owns meets the 1 to 1 parking. 
 
Mr. Farha said the most recent one he worked on, 1042 Tennessee Street, is 5 bedrooms and 5 
parking spots. 
 
Mr. John Davis

 

, thought it was bad policy. He said the Oread neighborhood has a serious problem 
with blight. The investment in boarding houses has improved the neighborhood and caters to a need 
for university students. He encouraged neighbors to call him or police if there are problems with any 
of his tenants. 

Commissioner Finkeldei asked how many of his projects could he have done with one parking space 
per person. 
 
Mr. Davis said one. He said parking is not a problem and a spot can always be found. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked for his opinion on the Special Use Permit requirement for large houses 
so that the city can have more control due to congregate living being more disruptive than 
apartments. 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 20 of 26 
Mr. Davis said it might be okay in theory but it might be a tough process. He did not want the 
houses next to his investment property to fall apart. He felt it was not good for the neighborhood.  
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked if he owns 1339 Ohio Street and if it met parking. 
 
Mr. Davis said he does own that property and that no it did not meet the parking, a variance had to 
be sought. He said it didn’t meet the parking requirement as an apartment house either. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked if someone wanted to buy an apartment house and fix it up would 
they have to request a variance for parking. 
 
Mr. McCullough said no, if it was a legal non-conforming property and they were doing regular 
maintenance but not adding more density they would not need a variance. 
 
Mr. Davis said his experience has been the exact opposite.  
 
Commissioner Finkeldei asked why did Mr. Davis choose to go from a 14 unit to 12 unit. He inquired 
about the economics of that. 
 
Mr. Davis said they were never meant to be apartments and over time it ruins the structural integrity 
of the house. We have put them back to what they previously were which makes them easier to 
manage. 
 
Ms. Carol von Tersch

 

, lived in the Oread neighborhood for 30 years, and not everything is a problem 
in the neighborhood. She said that the only people speaking from the heart for the neighborhood 
this evening are women. She said this was not a downzoning issue. She said this is an issue that has 
cropped up in the past four years because of a loophole in the Code and that is the bottom line. She 
said a majority of the people who have spoke this evening do not currently live in the neighborhood. 
She said the four unrelated people occupying the house was established in the 1970’s and not a new 
item. Most of the boarding houses approved in the past years have been granted variances in 
parking. She said it would be nice to have a responsible party in a boarding house instead of calling 
the police. 

Ms. Fadila Boumaza,

 

 owner of 928 & 930 Ohio Street, said she was disappointed with the proposal. 
She said they should focus on rules that are already in place and try to address the root cause of the 
issue. Said she did not think this text amendment would fix any issues.  

Mr. Jeff Hatfield

 

, said the business he is part of, Crimson Properties, have decreased the total 
number of bedrooms and have not requested an increase in bedrooms. He said the parking 
requirements are too restrictive. He said they have improved their properties and he does not know 
who else would invest in these properties with increased regulations. 

Commissioner Finkeldei asked Mr. Hatfield what he thought about needing a Special Use Permit for 
more than six bedrooms.  
 
Mr. Hatfield said he has not fully read the Code so he would like further discussion on it. 
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Commissioner Singleton thanked staff for looking into this issue because it involves the entire 
community. She liked the changes and felt it is an excellent way to address the issue. She said 
occupants need enough parking for every individual. She also felt that having the appropriate 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 21 of 26 
disposal for trash meets the needs of everybody in all of the community. She said that when 
listening to the people who are economic invested in these types of homes in this neighborhood one 
of the things they say is that they are catering to the needs of the students. She said the students 
are a built in population so there will always be a need there for housing in that area. She liked the 
requirement about having a manager onsite and it addresses party houses. She felt as a community 
there is a responsibility to student housing that is being missed in boarding houses. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei said he is convinced that this has nothing to do with parking issues in the 
Oread neighborhood. The issue is the parking requirement allowing people to increase the density. 
He said the issue here is changing the parking requirement. The neighbors have mentioned a 
loophole and it is clear this is one area where there could be more occupants with less parking spots. 
He felt the reason for changing the parking would be to limit how these houses are redeveloped. He 
said there are more problems, such as noise, trash, and parties, with congregate living in general 
than apartment buildings and that is an issue. He said this won’t help the issues of all the boarding 
houses already built and that City Commission will have to go about how to solve those problems. 
He stated this text amendment does not solve the party problem to a great extent because there 
need to be other ways to solve that problem. There are dilapidated dwellings within the Oread 
neighborhood that need to be fixed up and the question is will there be single family home owners 
or investors to buy and fix them up. He said the biggest issue is when someone takes a small 
structure that could have been a single family house and converts it to a congregate living house 
and the neighbors don’t like it. He agreed that some large structures would never be converted back 
to single family but he felt that they are hurting themselves by allowing some of these larger 
structures to be renovated. He thought they needed to look at a hybrid of this system. He said for a 
certain size he would be okay with a Special Use Permit and he likes as part of that to have an 
identified manager. He said the manager could either be a tenant or property owner. He felt that for 
a certain size, probably 6 occupants or below, 1 to 1 parking was fine, but anything over 6 
occupants that 1.5 parking would make sense. He said that the 15’ square feet of patio is way too 
small. He said he could not support this text amendment the way it is written now and felt there is 
still work left to do. 
 
Commissioner Moore inquired about 6 people as the threshold. 
 
Mr. McCullough said it was a starting place that was very close to the definition of family. He said it 
is a philosophical issue about if the definition of family in the Code is valuable in the city and staff 
did not want to vary too much from that. He said this is the only use that is allowed in a large 
number of districts that was unabated in terms of the number of people that can live in a congregate 
setting if parking was there for the use. 
 
Commissioner Moore said if 6 occupants is the threshold then it makes 66% of the 21 examples of 
boarding houses non-conforming. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the number of 6 occupants did not come from an analysis of what would be 
issue of non-conforming and conforming. 
 
Commissioner Carter was concerned about the unintended consequences of moving forward with the 
text amendment tonight. He said this does not fully resolve issues. He felt they needed to do a 
better job of figuring out what we want to do with the neighborhood and there might be a few 
blocks in the Oread neighborhood that should be identified in the Oread Plan for boarding houses. 
He said he was not comfortable moving forward on this tonight. He felt they should consider other 
parking solutions. 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 22 of 26 
Commissioner Moore said it seemed like people were being penalized through parking and that it 
was almost like a double hit by requiring a Special Use Permit and parking reduction. He suggested 
moving forward with one or the other and see how it goes would be a better alternative than 
implementing both at the same time. 
 
Commissioner Harris said the issues expressed seem to be lack of parking in the neighborhood, 
trash, noise from parties, and no channel to address concerns except through the police. She was 
grateful to staff for the changes made but was not sure it really addressed the lack of parking in the 
neighborhood and felt there should be a permit system. She liked the idea of having a manager on 
the property. She said she has personally complained to the police in the past about parties and has 
had her tires slashed, things stolen from her house, and threatened. She also liked the trash 
provision. She felt they are not ready to move forward on this tonight. 
 
Commissioner Rasmussen said that these restrictions would not resolve blight, parking, noise, and 
trash issues and that it was more of a back door attempt to address issues. He said if parking is a 
serious problem then they should consider a parking permit program or meters on the street. He 
said they cannot ignore the fact of the proximity to Kansas University and they should encourage 
compact living around the campus to encourage walking. He felt that increased density around the 
campus is a good thing. He said there are few boarding houses outside of the Oread neighborhood 
but that the majority are in the Oread neighborhood so they should focus on that. He said they are 
in the middle of looking at the Oread neighborhood plan so they need to talk about zones that may 
be better suited to have mixed use with boarding houses, commercial, and residential. He felt they 
might be jumping the gun a little bit since the Oread Neighborhood Plan is not done yet. 
 
Commissioner Dominguez felt that neighborhoods belong to the people who live there and they 
should give the neighborhood credit and look to them for suggestions. He said he lives in the Oread 
neighborhood and there are some good and bad neighbors. He did not think it will devastate 
landlords because there will always be a market for students to live in that area. Parking will 
probably always be an issue especially with students driving in from other parts of town and parking 
there. He felt they should look into a parking system to regulate parking for those driving to the 
neighborhood. He likes the Special Use Permit and having a manager live on the premises because 
this is the heart of the city and should be kept up.  
 
Commissioner Finkeldei said one possibility would be to defer this until the Oread Plan or defer it 
with more staff direction.  
 
Commissioner Carter felt they should wait until the Oread Plan.  
 
Commissioner Blaser said he was not sure what should be done about parking. He likes the manager 
on site concept. He lives near a few boarding houses away from the Oread neighborhood and they 
are clean. He said this text amendment may help with the Oread Plan since the text amendment is 
for the entire city. He was in favor of limiting the deck space on all sides of the house. He said 
parking was not resolved by this text amendment and may create a hardship for large houses. He 
was in favor of moving forward with this tonight and thought it had some good points in it. 
 
Commissioner Singleton said she did not think this plan was proposed to solve the parking issues for 
the neighborhood plan. This is about this type of unit, boarding houses, which is an unusual type of 
unit generally. Requiring there to be enough parking and trash onsite makes complete sense for 
boarding houses. She gave an example of a patio on Edgehill Road that was massive with a bar and 
she would not want to live near it. She felt the text amendment does address the issues that are 
problematic as a result of boarding houses. She said there needs to be diversity in the neighborhood 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 23 of 26 
and everyone contributing value to it. She thought this addresses boarding houses and it is a 
separate issue from the Oread Plan. 
 
Commissioner Harris said if she had a choice between voting on what is on the table tonight or 
deferring until the Oread Plan she would chose to vote on what is proposed tonight because she felt 
they could not afford to be approving any more boarding houses. 
Commissioner Dominguez said this will change rules and he wondered how it would be enforced. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the Oread Plan will be heard by Planning Commission next month and he would 
recommend deferring the boarding house text amendment indefinitely. He said he has some ideas of 
how to get at some of the issues. 
 
Commissioner Harris requested that the item not be deferred indefinitely and suggested it come 
back to Planning Commission in December. 
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner Finkeldei, seconded by Commissioner Carter, to defer the item to the 
December Planning Commission meeting. 
 

Motion carried 8-1, with Commissioner Blaser voting in opposition. 
 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 24 of 26 
PC Minutes 10/26/09   
MISCELLANEOUS NEW OR OLD BUSINESS 
 
MISC ITEM NO. 1 
 
Initiate a Text Amendment to Article 12- Floodplain Regulations to review General and Additional 
Standards for Residential and Non-Residential Construction. 
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Mr. McCullough reviewed the item. 
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner Singleton, seconded by Commissioner Blaser, to initiate a text 
amendment to Article 12 of the Development Code to review and consider revisions to floodplain 
regulations. 
 
 Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
 
 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 25 of 26 
PC Minutes 10/26/09   
Consideration of any other business to come before the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Finkeldei said he would like to initiate a Text Amendment to change the Bylaws to 
only have ex parte given at the beginning of the meeting instead of before every item. 
 
Mr. John Miller said one other thing to add would be disclosure of ex parte for any Commissioner 
that comes to the meeting late.  
 
Motioned by Commissioner Finkeldei, seconded by Commissioner Carter, to initiate a Text 
Amendment to change the Bylaws. 
 
 Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Steven Watts

 

 1649 Edgehill Road, was upset because his street was removed from the Oread 
Neighborhood. He said the Oread Neighborhood Association is funded by the City and felt that any 
decisions made by Planning Commission or City Commission should consider that there are people 
who were written out of the neighborhood. He said he cannot participate in the neighborhood 
association because his house was voted out. He asked Planning Commission to take into 
consideration that the Oread Neighborhood Association is not reflective of everyone that is part of 
the Oread neighborhood. 

Commissioner Moore said he chaired the Community Development Block Grant and that the money 
is Federal money, not City money. 
 
Commissioner Carter asked how long there has been parking on both sides of Edgehill. 
 
Mr. Watts said forever. 
 
Commissioner Harris asked when his part of the neighborhood was removed from the Oread. 
 
Mr. Watts said it was done prior to this plan. 
 
Commissioner Harris asked when his street was removed from the Oread neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Watts said it was around 2005 without his knowledge.  
 
Commissioner Dominguez asked how many people live on Edgehill Road. 
 
Mr. Watts said there is a sorority, a fraternity, and two houses. He urged Planning Commission to 
take into consideration that they have the ability to question why Edgehill Road was removed from 
the neighborhood. He felt it was not fair. 
 
Commissioner Moore asked if Mr. Watts attended the Oread Neighborhood meetings. 
 



PC Minutes  
October 26, 2009 

Page 26 of 26 
Mr. Watts said the Oread neighborhood would not let him attend the meetings.  
 
Mr. McCullough said Mr. Watts’ issue has been reviewed by City Commission and the City does not 
feel like it can be involved with private disputes between public members and neighborhood 
associations. He said staff was happy to hear Mr. Watts’ comments on the Oread Plan. 
 
Commissioner Carter asked if the City has heard from the Oread Neighborhood Association about 
when and why it happened. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the Oread Neighborhood Association has not given a response to the City 
regarding the issue. 
 
Mr. Watts disputed that the Oread Neighborhood Association is not funded by the City. 
 
Ms. Marci Francisco

 

 said the neighborhood changed the boundaries and that each neighborhood 
association decides the boundaries. She said all Oread Neighborhood Association meetings are open 
to the public. 

 
 
Mr. Rob Farha

 

 thanked staff for their time and asked to be part of the brainstorming session on 
boarding houses. 

 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Adjourn at 10:045p.m. 
 

 
 

 
 


	MISCELLANEOUS NEW OR OLD BUSINESS

